
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. 

LUCAS COOK, and others similarly-

situated, 

 

               Plaintiffs, 

 

vs. 

 

ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, 

LLC, a Florida limited liability 

company, d/b/a Need it Now Courier,  

 

               Defendant. 

_______________________________/ 

 

COMPLAINT 
 

 COMES NOW, Plaintiff, LUCAS COOK, by and through his undersigned attorney, and 

hereby sues Defendant, ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, LLC, a Florida limited liability 

company, d/b/a Need it Now Courier (herein collectively referred to “the EMPLOYER" unless 

referred to individually), and alleges:  

JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS AND VENUE 

1. This is an action to recover money damages for unpaid overtime wages pursuant 

to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201-219 (“FLSA”).  

2. Plaintiff is a resident of Miami-Dade County, Florida.  

3. Defendant, ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, LLC, d/b/a Need it Now Courier, is 

a Florida limited liability company, which at all times material hereto, was doing business in 

Broward County, Florida, where Plaintiff was employed, and at all times material hereto was and 

is engaged in interstate commerce.  
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4. This action is brought by Plaintiff to recover from the Employer unpaid overtime 

wages, as well as an additional amount as liquidated damages, costs and reasonable attorney’s 

fees under the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., and specifically under the provisions of 29 

U.S.C. § 207.  

5. FLSA coverage is triggered because the corporate Defendant is and, at all times 

pertinent to this Complaint, was engaged in interstate commerce. At all times pertinent to this 

Complaint, the Employer operates as an organization which sells and/or markets its services 

and/or goods and/or materials to customers from throughout the United States and also provides 

its services for goods sold and transported from across state lines of numerous other States, and 

the Employer obtains and solicits funds from non-Florida sources, accepts funds from non-

Florida sources, uses telephonic transmissions going over State lines to do its business, transmits 

funds outside the State of Florida, and otherwise regularly engages in interstate commerce, 

particularly with respect to its employees. Upon information and belief, the annual gross revenue 

of the Employer was at all times material hereto in excess of $500,000.00 per annum, and two or 

more employees handled goods or materials that moved in the stream of commerce on a frequent 

and recurrent basis, and/or Plaintiff and those similarly-situated, by virtue of working in 

interstate commerce, otherwise satisfies the FLSA’s requirements. 

6. Plaintiff, and those similarly-situated employees, regularly, and on a recurring 

basis utilized and handled equipments, goods or materials manufactured and purchased from 

outside the State of Florida, or which originate from places outside the State of Florida and 

regularly used the instrumentalities of interstate commerce in their work. 
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7. Those similarly-situated employees are current and former employees who 

worked for Defendant, performed the same or similar duties as the Plaintiff and were not paid 

overtime wages for all of their hours worked. 

8. By reason of the foregoing, the Employer is and was, during all times hereafter 

mentioned, an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce as 

defined in 29 U.S.C. §§ 203(r) and 203(s) and/or Plaintiff is within interstate commerce. 

PLAINTIFF'S EMPLOYMENT 

9. Plaintiff was employed by Defendant as a van driver. Plaintiff's job duties 

included: collecting and distributing packages. Plaintiff worked for Defendant from 

approximately August 2014 through August 2015 and again in January 2017 through March 21, 

2017. Plaintiff worked an average of 72 hours a week. Plaintiff was paid $120.00 a day or an 

approximately of $10.00 an hour. Plaintiff worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week, but 

Defendant failed to pay him any overtime wages. 

COUNT I 

UNPAID OVERTIME WAGES AGAINST  

ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, LLC 

 

10. Plaintiff re-alleges and re-avers paragraphs 1 through 9, as fully set forth herein. 

11. Plaintiff was employed by Defendant as a driver. Plaintiff worked for Defendant 

from approximately August 2014 through August 2015 and again in January 2017 through 

March 21, 2017. Plaintiff worked an average of 72 hours a week.
1
 Plaintiff was paid $120.00 a 

day or approximately $10.00 an hour. Plaintiff worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week, 

but Defendant failed to pay him any overtime wages.  

                                                 
1
 Plaintiff estimates his hours worked as a matter of just and reasonable inference as allowed by 

Anderson v. Clemens Pottery Co., 328 U.S. 680 (1946). Plaintiff reserves the right to amend his 

estimated hours worked once he receives and reviews Defendant's time and payroll records. 
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12. Plaintiff worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week and was not paid time-

and-one-half wages. Plaintiff requires obtaining the necessary records and information to 

determine the amount of overtime wages owed in this case. 

13. At all times material hereto, Defendant failed to comply with Title 29 U.S.C. §§ 

201-219 and 29 C.F.R. § 516.2 and § 516.4 et seq. in that Plaintiff performed services and 

worked in excess of the maximum hours provided by the FLSA but no provision was made by 

the Employer to properly pay him at the rate of time-and-one-half for all hours worked in excess 

of forty (40) per workweek, as provided in the FLSA. 

14. Defendant knew and/or showed reckless disregard of the provisions of the FLSA 

concerning the payment of overtime wages as required by the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Defendant had knowledge of Plaintiff's work schedule and the amount of hours he worked. 

Defendant had knowledge that Plaintiff worked over 40 hours weekly. Defendant knew or should 

have known the hours over 40 weekly were required to be paid at a rate of time-and-one-half. No 

valid reason exists for the denial of paying overtime wages. Defendant remains owing Plaintiff 

these overtime wages since the commencement of Plaintiff's employment with Defendant as set 

forth above and is entitled to a recovery of double damages. 

15. Defendant willfully and intentionally failed to pay Plaintiff the required overtime 

rate because it knew that Plaintiff was working hours in excess of forty per workweek and made 

the conscious decision not to pay Plaintiff overtime wages.  

16. Plaintiff has retained the law offices of the undersigned attorney to represent him 

in this action and is entitled to recover a reasonable attorney’s fee. 
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests compensatory and liquidated damages and reasonable 

attorney’s fees and costs from the Defendant, ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, LLC, d/b/a 

Need it Now Courier, pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act as cited above, to be proven at 

the time of trial for overtime owing from Plaintiff's entire employment period with Defendant, or 

as much as allowed by the Fair Labor Standards Act, whichever is greater, along with court 

costs. In the event that Plaintiff does not recover liquidated damages, then Plaintiff will seek an 

award of prejudgment interest for the unpaid overtime, and any and all other relief which this 

Court deems reasonable under the circumstances. 

JURY DEMAND 

 

Plaintiff demands trial by jury of all issues triable as of right by jury. 

       THE LAW OFFICES OF 

       EDDY O. MARBAN 

       1600 Ponce De Leon Boulevard, Suite 902 

       Coral Gables, Florida 33134 

       Telephone (305) 448-9292 

       Facsimile (305) 448-9477 

       E-mail: marbanlaw@gmail.com 

          

        By: s/Edilberto O. Marban   

              EDDY O. MARBAN, ESQ. 

               Fl. Bar No. 435960 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.

LUCAS COOK, and others similarly-
situated,

Plaintiffs,

VS.

ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, LLC,
d/b/a Need it Now Courier, a Florida
limited liability company,

Defendant.

NOTICE OF CONSENT TO JOIN

Plaintiff, LUCAS COOK, by and through his undersigned attorney, and hereby gives

notice ofhis written Consent to Join.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Notice was served on Defendant together with

the Summons and Complaint.

THE LAW OFFICES OF
EDDY 0. MARBAN
1600 Ponce De Leon Boulevard, Suite 902
Coral Gables, Florida 33134
Telephone (305) 448-9292
Facsimile (305) 448-9477
E-mail: marbanlaw@gmail.com

By: s/Edilberto 0. Marban
EDDY 0. MARBAN, ESQ.
Fl. Bar No. 435960
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CONSENT TO JOIN

The undersigned, LUCAS COOK, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 216(b), hereby consents to

become a party plaintiff in this action.

LUCAS COOK

Date: 3P3b 9-
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

Southern District of Florida

LUCAS COOK, and others similarly-situated,

Plaintiff

V. Civil Action No.

ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, LLC

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

TO: (Defendant's name and address) ASAP COURIER & LOGISTICS, LLC
c/o Alex Altreche
941 S.W. 21st Terrace
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33312

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) or 60 days ifyou
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney,
whose name and address are: Eddy 0. Marban, Esq.

The Law Offices of Eddy 0. Marban
1600 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Suite 902
Coral Gables, Florida 33134

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: 03/27/2017
Signature ofClerk or Depz0 Clerk
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